18. U.S.C	erial contains information affecting the National Dolens. Secs. 793 and 794, the transmission or revolution of w	hich in the manner to an unauthorized p	50X1-HUM
OUNTRY	North Korea	REPORT	50X1-HUN
UBJECT 🕜	Sariwon City Plan	DATE DISTR. S No	vember 1962
	·	NO. PAGES 17	
		REFERENCES	50X1-HUN
ATE OF		¬. ·	. 50X1-HUN
LACE & ATE ACQ.		FIELD REPORT	50X1-HUN
	THIS IS UNEVALUATED INFORMATION. SOURCE GRAD	DINGS ARE DEFINITIVE. APPRAISAL OF CONTEN	T IS TENTATIVE. 50X1-HUM
	The following numbers are keyed to (N 38-30, E 125-45) (YC 4064), Hwa	nghae-pukto.	TOT DATIWOH
1.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. B was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story.	nghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese r	ule, the factory
· \ ,	Sariwon National Brick Factory. B	anghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese r and repaired after the Kor red brick structure with a ant Station. Built after t haped, three story, red br	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure.
2.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. Be was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story, factory had 25 kilns. Sariwon National Building Manageme ermictice, this building was a u-s The station managed all government of the Construction Management Bur Sariwon Ch'olsen Middle School and a three-story, red brick structure	mghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese rand repaired after the Korred brick structure with a mt Station. Built after thaped, three story, red browned buildings in Sarivo eau of the Hwanghae-pukto Primary School. Built in with a cement roof.	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure. n under control People's Committee.
2.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. Be was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story, factory had 25 kilns. Sariwon National Building Manageme ermictice, this building was a u-s The station managed all government of the Construction Management Bur Sariwon Ch'olsen Middle School and	nghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese rand repaired after the Korred brick structure with a nt Station. Built after thaped, three story, red browned buildings in Sariwo eau of the Hwanghae-pukto Primary School. Built in with a cement roof. tructure built in 1959. The Hwanghu (N 38-40, E 125-4 C 5256) areas above Sariwo	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure. n under control People's Committee. 1955, this was he station was 6) (YC 4183)
2.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. Be was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story, factory had 25 kilns. Sariwon National Building Manageme ermictice, this building was a u-s The station managed all government of the Construction Management Bur Sariwon Ch'olsan Middle School and a three-story, red brick structure Pumping Station. A single-story s constructed to supply water to the and Pongson (N 38-25, E 125-53) (Y was stored in the large waterway of Bridge. Damaged during the Korean	nghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese rand repaired after the Korred brick structure with a nt Station. Built after thaped, three story, red browned buildings in Sariwo eau of the Hwanghae-pukto Primary School. Built in with a cement roof. tructure built in 1959. The Hwanghu (N 38-40, E 125-4 C 5256) areas above Sariwo	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure. n under control People's Committee. 1955, this was he station was 6) (YC 4183) n. The water Works.
2. 3.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. Be was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story, factory had 25 kilns. Sariwon National Building Manageme ermictice, this building was a u-s. The station managed all government of the Construction Management Bur Sariwon Ch'olsan Middle School and a three-story, red brick structure Pumping Station. A single-story s constructed to supply water to the and Pongson (N 38-25, E 125-53) (Y was stored in the large waterway of Bridge. Damaged during the Korean armistice. The vehicle lane was c	nghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese rand repaired after the Korred brick structure with a nt Station. Built after thaped, three story, red browned buildings in Sariwo eau of the Hwanghae-pukto Primary School. Built in with a cement roof. tructure built in 1959. The Hwanghu (N 38-40, E 125-40 C 5256) areas above Sariwo f the Oji-dong Irrigation War. the bridge was reposited.	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure. n under control People's Committee. 1955, this was he station was 6) (YC 4183) n. The water Works.
2. 3.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. Be was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story, factory had 25 kilns. Sariwon National Building Manageme ermictice, this building was a u-s. The station managed all government of the Construction Management Bur Sariwon Ch'olsan Middle School and a three-story, red brick structure Pumping Station. A single-story s constructed to supply water to the and Pongson (N 38-25, E 125-53) (Y was stored in the large waterway of Bridge. Damaged during the Korean armistice. The vehicle lane was c	anghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese rand repaired after the Korred brick structure with a suilt after thaped, three story, red browned buildings in Sariwo eau of the Hwanghae-pukto Primary School. Built in with a cement roof. tructure built in 1959. The Hwangju (N 38-40, E 125-40 C 5256) areas above Sariwof the Oji-dong Irrigation War, the bridge was repairovered with cement concret	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure. n under control People's Committee. 1955, this was he station was 6) (YC 4183) n. The water Works.
2. 3.	Sariwon National Brick Factory. Be was damaged during the Korean War July 1953. It is a single-story, factory had 25 kilns. Sariwon National Building Manageme ermictice, this building was a u-s. The station managed all government of the Construction Management Bur Sariwon Ch'olsan Middle School and a three-story, red brick structure Pumping Station. A single-story seconstructed to supply water to the and Pongsan (N 38-25, E 125-53) (Y was stored in the large waterway of Bridge. Damaged during the Korean armistice. The vehicle lane was cowas wooden.	anghae-pukto. Suilt during the Japanese rand repaired after the Korred brick structure with a suilt after thaped, three story, red browned buildings in Sariwo eau of the Hwanghae-pukto Primary School. Built in with a cement roof. tructure built in 1959. The Hwangju (N 38-40, E 125-40 C 5256) areas above Sariwof the Oji-dong Irrigation War, the bridge was repairovered with cement concret	ule, the factory ean armistice in tile roof; the he Korean ick structure. n under control People's Committee. 1955, this was he station was 6) (YC 4183) n. The water Works. red after the e; the sidewalk

- Unidentified Junior and Senior Middle School. Built in 1950; a red brick structure with a tile roof.
- Embeniment, Serivon Conel. Constructed with cement concrete in 1959; this orbinizent prevented water from overflowing and maintained the proper water level. There were two floodgates.
- Cement Concrete Eridge. Constructed after the Moreon armistice.
- Iwenchee-pulto Autocobile Venegement Station and Sariwon Autocobive Station. The office week single-story structure with line-coated walls and a slate reof. There were two carages: single-story brick structures with linecoated walls and slate roofs, containing about ten city buses, seven suburban buces, and ten trucks. The Mwangine-pulsto Automobile Management Station supervised all of the automotive stations in the province, and Seriwon Automotive Station operated city buses and handled trucking, making contracts as requested by various enterprises.
- 10. Sariwon Market. Enclosed by a board fonce with a gate on each of the four sides, the tarket consisted of sixteen single-story block stells with limecoated wells. A commodity display counter was installed in the center of the nerhet. As a result of the prohibition of all individual connercial and industrial business, in 1945 former merchants in this market were absorbed into the present cooperatives.
 - c. Display counter.
 - b, c, d, and e, Stalls. Each had a flat roof.
 - 2. Purchasing store.
 - g. Foodstuff store.
 - h. Farm products store.
 - i. Clothing store.
 - j. Shoe repair shop.
 - E. Marine products store.L. Rostaurant.
 - Rostaurant.
 - n. Berbershop.
 - n. Laundry, dye shop, industrial goods store, butcher shop, fruit store, and confectionery store.
- 11, 12. Abortmont Houses. Built from 1958 to 1960, each apartmont house was a four-story block structure with line-coated walls and a coment tile roof. The first floor of each apartment house was occupied by stores and restaurants; the other floors were occupied by 40 to 50 laborers' and office workers'
- 13, 14. Apartment Houses. Built from 1950 to 1960, these were four-story, L-shaped block structures with lime-econed walls and slate roofs . On the first floor vere stores and a restaurant. Femilies of laborers, office verters, and critists lived on the other floors, each family occupying two rooms.
 - Surges' Training Institute. Built in 1957; a single-story, red brick building with a slate roof. The institute was under the control of the Euclic Meelth Division, Huanghae-purto People's Committee, and nurses trained here were accioned to hospitals and clinics within Examples-pulte.
 - Introduce-pultio Control Feople's Respital. Built after the Kercan armistics, the heapital the surrounded by a red brick fence.

 - a. Mard. A two-story brick structure with coment-coated walls. b: Surgery. A two-story brick structure with coment-coated walls.
 - c. Medical clinic. A two-story brick structure with coment-scated walls.
 - d. K-ray roof. A single-story wooden structure with line-coated walls.
 - Office. A single-story wooden structure with line-coated wills.

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

-3-

- 1. Pedietric, dental, Cynecology, eye, and throat clinics. These clinics were housed in a three-story red brick building with a flat cement roof.
- G. Surgery ward. A two-story red brick structure.
- h. Dining room, boiler room, and levatory. A single-story brick structure.
- 17. Serivon Righer Medical Professional School. Built in 1954, the school was a three-story red brick structure with a slate roof known as the Serivon Medical College until 1956, when it was renamed. Senior middle school graduates were admitted to this school upon passing an entrance examination. Graduates of the school's three-year course were placed as interns in various hospitals, clinics and epidemic-prevention stations in Muonghae-pulto. More than half of the graduates advanced to medical universities.
- 18. Apertment House. Built during 1957 to 1958; a four-story block structure with line-coated walls and a red tile roof. The first floor of this apartment house was used as stores; the other floors were occupied by families of laborers and office workers.
- 19. Haringhee-pulto Steff School, Communist College, and Haringhee-pulto

 Agricultural Staff School. Built in 1959; a four-story block structure with

 cement-coated walls and a red tile roof. This building was used jointly by
 the Haringhee-pulto Staff School and the Haringhee-pulto Agricultural Staff
 School in the daytime; from 1600 to 2200 hours, the Communist College used
 the classrooms of the Evanghee-pulto Staff School.
 - a. Dining room.
 - b. Levatory.
- 20. Former Huenghae-pulito Korean Lebor Perty (KLP) Committee. Eight office buildings built after the Korean armistice. The front and reer sides of the compound were fonced with brick and the other two sides were fenced with board. Two buildings (a and b) were two-story red brick structures with coment-coated walls and slate roofs. The other buildings were single-story wooden structures with lime-coated walls and slate roofs.
 - a. This building was used by the Evenghae-pulto Daily Hews Company until 1957 when the company moved to a new building and the Evenghae-pulto KLP Committee used the building as its office.
 - b, c, d, c. Offices.
 - f. Small council room.
 - G. Large council room. Accommodated about 500-600 persons.
 - a. The identity of this building is unknown.
- 21. Dornitories, Rearghee-puito KIP Committee. Two dornitories, built in 1955, vere currounded with brick valls; each dornitory was a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated valls and a slate roof. Bachelor workers of the Evanghae-puito KIP Committee and local travelers who visited the committee on official business stayed in these dornitories; each dornitory accommodated about 15 persons.
- 22. Ruenthee-pulto Samitary Epidemic Prevention Station. Built after the emulatice, a two-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a clate roof.
- 23. Wangine-pulto Telegraph and Telephone Management Bureau. Duilt in 1955, a two-day red brick structure with a coulent tile roof. This bureau handled telegraph and telephone business and maintained communication facilities.
- 24. <u>Respine-pulto Trade League Committee</u>. Built after the Korean ermistice; a two-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

: 4

-Ŀ-

- 25. Mwanghae-puicto Democratic Youth League Committee. Euilt in 1955; a two-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 26. Sariwon People's Committee. Built in 1957; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 27. Sarivon People's Committee. Built in 1955; a two-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 28. Council Room, Seriwon People's Committee. Built in 1956; a single-story wooden structure with line-ccated walls and a red tile roof, encircled by a board fence. It accommodated about 200 persons.
- 29. Hwanghae-pukto-Agricultural Eank. Built after the Korean armistice; a two-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a flat cement roof. This bank controlled agricultural banks in each county of Ewanghae-pukto, under the supervision of the Ewanghae-pukto People's Committee Finance Division and the Central Agricultural Eank.
- 30. Evanshae-puitto Artists League. Built in 1957; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 31. Evanguee-pulto Communications Management Division. Had been used by the Sarivon Post Office until 1959; a two-story brick structure with cement coated walls and a flat roof. This division directed and controlled all the post offices in Evanguee-pulto.
- 32. Scrivon Post Office and Apartment House. Built in 1959; an L-shaped, fourstory block structure with lime-coated walls. The first floor was occupied
 by the Scrivon Post Office and the other floors were used as an apartment
 house, accommodating about 40 femilies, most of whom were staff members of the
 Hwanghae-pulto KIP Committee and the Hwanghae-pulto People's Committee; a few
 femilies of laborers and office workers also resided there. This apartment
 house was generally called the Staff Residence because the majority of the
 residents were families of staff members.
- 33, 34, 35. Apartment House. Built during 1959 and 1960; this four-story block structure with line-coated wells and a red tile roof accommodated about 30 families, including the families of most staff members of the Ewanghae-pukto People's Committee.
- 36. Apartment House. Built in 1960, this was a four-story block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 37. See No. 33, above.

13.47

- 38. Youth Department Store and Apartment House. Built in 1960; an L-shaped, fourstory block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile red. The Youth Department Store occupied the first floor, the second and third floors were used as offices, and the fourth floor was used as living quarters for about 20 families. If
- 39. Sariwon Canal Waterway. Constructed by enlarging the stream which runs into the Chacryong River, this waterway was completed in 1960. Three meters of the lower section of the embandments were stone and the upper section was grass-mixed mud.
- 40. Wooden Eridge. Rebuilt after the Korean armistice, this bridge led to Ch'olsan-dong where many official residences were located. There was no sign or name on the bridge.

-5-

- Dormitories, Sariwon Higher Medical Professional School. Built in 1957; three single-story structures with lime-coated walls and slate roofs:
 - a. Boys' dormitory.b. Girls' dormitory.

 - c. Dining room.
- Wonju-ri People's Committee. 42.
- 43. City Watershed. Located on a bare hillside.
- 44. Unidentified School Buildings. Two three-story buildings.
- Ch'olsen-dong Office. Built in 1959; an L-shaped single-story structure with lime-coated mud walls and a red tile roof.
- 46. Dormitory, Rwanghae-pulto People's Committee. Built in 1956; a single-story red brick structure with lime-coated walls and a wooden roof. It had a capacity of about 100 persons, accommodating three to four in each room. The dormitory was managed by the Accounting Department of the Hwanghae-pukto People's Committee. Single employees of the Hwanghae-pukto People's Committee and some of the families of committee employees who had no residence assignment were accommodated in this dormitory.
- Sariwon leteorological Observatory. The observatory stood at the top of a 20-meter hill; built after the Korean armistice, it was a two-story structure with lime-coated walls operated under the direct control of the Central . Netcorclogical Station in Plyongyang to which it sent results of meteorological observations in the Sarivon area.
- 48. Evenghae-pukto Tuberculosis Hospital.
- Chiolson Primary School. The three single-story temporary structures with lime-coated walls and slate roofs were built after the Korean armistice.
- 50. Floodgates, Sariwon Canal. Constructed in 1959; frames of the two floodgates were constructed of reinforced cement.
- Repair Factory, Kwanghae-pukto Provincial Power Distribution Department. Built after the Korean armistice, three single-story red brick structures with red tile roofs.
 - a. Transformer repair workshop. Transformers, generators and motors were repaired here.
 - b. Tool repair workshop.
 - c. Office building.

*: ..

- 52. Sariyon Kindergarten. A single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a tile roof, surrounded by a fence. It was built after the Korean
- Drama Rehersal Hall. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. This hall also was used
- 54. Hwanghae-pukto Wational Theater. Built after the Korean armistice; a twostory brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. It was operated under the guidance of the Propaganda Department, Propaganda Bureau, Hwanghae-pulto People's Committee and had 400 seats. It was used as a movie hall when there were no drama rehersals. The number of daily spectators averaged about 200 to 300.

.C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

and the property of the proper

-6-

- 55. Annex to the Eminchae-pulto Provincial Theater. A single-story brick structure with a slate roof; used as a drema research center.
- 56. Apertment Rousegand Youth Department Store. An L-shaped, four-story block structure with lime-coated wells and a red tile roof, built during 1959 and 1960. The first and second floors were used as the Youth Department Store, and the third and fourth floors were living quarters.
- 57. Serivon Vermicelli Restaurant. Built after the Korean armistice; a singlestory wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof. The restaurant was operated under the guidance of the Commerce Department of the Sariwon People's Committee.
- 58. Drugstore. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 59. Apartment House. Duilt in 1959; a three-story red brick structure with a slate roof. The accommodated about 20 families.
- 60. Sarivon Internal Affairs Station. Built after the Korean armistice; a twostory brick structure with a red tile roof.
- 61. Sariwon Fire Station. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story brick structure.
- 62. Sariwon Internal Affairs Station Council Room. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story red brick structure with a red tile roof; the building was enclosed by a fence.
- 63, 64. Apartment House. Built in 1958; a single-story structure with cement coated walls and a cement tile roof.
- 65. Honorary Wounded Veterans: Production Cooperative Factory. This was built after the Korean armistice. Enclosed by a brick well, it was an L-shaped, two-story red brick structure with a red tile roof. About 100 wounded veterans worked at this factory; the main products were chemical articles.
 - 66, 67. Apartment Houses. Duilt during 1959 and 1960, each apartment house was a four-story block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof. About 60 families of laborers and clerical workers lived in each apartment house.
- 68. Apartment House. Built during 1959 and 1960, this was an L-shaped, fourstory block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 69. See No. 65, above.

z* ;

- 70. Construction Eank. Duilt after the Korean armistice; a two-story red crick structure with a slate roof. This bank loaned funds for construction works in Hwanghae-pukto, under the direction of the Finance Division of the Hwanghae-pukto People's Committee.
- 71. Internal Affairs Branch Office. Duilt after the Korean armistice; a rectangular, single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 72. National Store. Built after the Korean armistice; a two-story red brick structure with a slate roof. It was operated by the Commerce Bureau of the Munchae-pulsto People's Committee.
- 73. National Bathhouse No. 2. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story red brick structure with a slate reef. It had two bathrooms, one for men and the other for women. It accommodated about 20 persons.

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

50X1-HUM

-7-

- 74. Wational Barbershop. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof. It had seven chairs and six barbers; the daily quota of haircuts for each barber was 17 to 20.
- 75. Scrivon Movie Hall. Built after the Morean armistice; an L-shaped, two-story red brief structure with cement-coated walls and a slate roof. The movie hall was operated by the Education and Cultural Propaganda Department of the Sariwon People's Committee. It had 400 to 500 seats.
- 76. Branch, Sarivon Brick Factory. Built after the Korean armistice; an L-shaped, single-story brick structure with a slate roof.
- 77. West Serivon Reilroad Station. Built after the Korean armistice; a singlestory brick structure with white coated walls and a slate roof.
- 78. Headquarters, Oji-dong Irrigation Construction Station. Built in 1957; an L-shaped, two-story red brick structure with a slate roof. This station was a Grade III enterprise and had about 100 office workers and technical workers and several hundred laborers.
- 79, 80; 81. Apartment Houses. Built during 1958 to 1960; each spartment house was a three-story prefabricated block structure with coment-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 82. Scrivon KIP Committee. Built after the Korean ermistice; a three-story brick structure with a slate roof. It had about 100 employees.
- 83, 64, 85, 86. Apartment Houses. Each apartment house was a three-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 87. Primary School Building. Built after the Korean armistice, this was an L-shaped, three-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 88, 89. Hwanghoe-pulto Procurement Management Station. Built after the Korean armictice, this comprised two single-story wooden structures with lime-coated walls and alate roofs. This station supervised local procurement organizations in Hwanghae-pulto under the direction of the Ministry of Food Procurement and Administration!
- 90. Restaurant. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story structure with a slate roof. It was the largest restaurant in Sariwon and had about 100 tables.
- 91. Iwangace-pukto Central Bank. Damaged during the Korean war and repaired after the Korean armistice; a single-story structure with line-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 92. Harchouse of the Ewanghae-pulto Central Bank. A single-story structure.
- 93. Eventine-pulto Econonic Committee. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story red brick structure with a slate roof. In 1959, all provincial economic committees controlled national economic organizations in provinces under the direction of the Central Economic Committee.
- 94. Apartment House. Built after the Korean armistice; a two-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 95. City Construction Designing Research Institute. Built after the Korean exalstice; an L-shaped single-story wooden structure with line-coated walls end a slate roof. This institute designed city residences and did research work under the direction of the Central City Construction Designing Research Institute and the City Construction Management Eureau of the Ewang has pulto People's Committee. The institute had about 100 employees, including designers, researchers and general clerical workers.

-8-

- 96. Hunghee-puito People's Committee. This committee occupied 14 buildings.
 One of them, built during the Japanese rule, was severelydemaged during the Korean Her and repaired after the armistice. The remaining 13 buildings were built after the ormistice.
 - c. Finance Division, Exemination Division and Statistics Bureau. A threestory red brick structure with a slate roof.
 - b. Guard room. Exilt in 1959; a cincle-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a flat roof.
 - c. City Construction Management Eureau, Local Industrial Management Eureau, and Highway Management Eureau. A two-story red brick structure with a flat roof.
 - d. Commorce Management Dureau, Procurement and Rice Administration Management
 Bureau. A two-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a flat
 roof.
 - e. Education and Cultural Propaganda Eureau, Fublic Health Division, Construction Committee, Rural Construction Division, and Irrigation Construction Maragement Eureau. An L-shaped, two-story red brick structure with a flat roof.
 - f. laboratory. A brick building.
 - g. Staff building. A two-story red brick structure with lime-coated walls and a flat roof. This building housed offices of the provincial people's committee chairman and vice-chairmen, the provincial KLP committee, chairman and vice-chairmen, the staff division of the planning committee, administrative instructors, the Confidential Document Department, and the Library Management Eureau.
 - n. Council room. A single-story structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
 - i. Confidential document printing plant. A single-story wooden structure with line-costed wills and a red tile roof. This plant printed the important documents of the provincial people's committee.
 - j. Garage. A single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. The Examples-pulsto People's Committee had two trucks, four joeps and two sedans.
 - h. Doy nursery and barbershop. A single-story brick structure with limecoated walks and a red tile roof. The nursery had ten nurses; the barbershop had two barbers.
 - Accounting Department and Naturial Department. A single-story brick structure with lime-scated wells and a slate roof.
 - m. Eoller room and bathroom. A single-story red brick structure with a flat roof. One half of the building was used as a boiler room and the other half as a bathroom.
 - n. Agricultural Technique Eureau. A single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 97. Match Repair Shop, Earberchop, and Selec Store. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story weaden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 98. Garage, Driver's Training Center. Duilt after the Korean armistice; a singlestory structure with lime-cented wells and a slate roof.
- 99. Driver's Training Center. Duilt after the Korean armistice; an L-shaped, single-story structure with lime-coated walls and a slate reof. A large number of the approximately 200 trainees were recommended by the agricultural cooperatives; some were recommended by factories and mines.
- 100. Mwanghee-pulses Medical Supplies Management Station. Built after the Morean armistice; an L-chaped, single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. This station distributed the medical supplies received from the central government to verious hespitals in the province, under the direction of the Central Medical Supplies Management Station and the Public Health Department of the Managhae-pulsto People's Committee. The station also produced some medicines.

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

٠+9+

- 101. Sarivon Locomotive Repair Factory. Built after the Korean armistice, this was a single-story brick structure with a slate roof enclosed by a brick wall.
- 102. Sariwon Canal Waterway. Constructed with reinforced cement.
- 103. Waterway Bridge. Built in 1956 with reinforced cement.
- 104. National Earbershop and Bathhouse No. 1. Built after the Korean armistice; a two-story red brick structure with a slate roof. The first floor was divided into two parts, one used as a barbarshop and the other as a bathhouse. The bathhouse was divided into a section for men and one for women, and accompodated 40 persons at one time. The barbarshop had seven chairs and seven barbars. The second floor was occupied by the offices of the barbarshop and bathhouse.
- 105. Sarivon Construction Materials Store. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls end a slate roof. Ward-robes, sideboards and construction materials were sold at this store.
- 106. Mational Farm Implement Store. Built after the Korean armistice; a singlestory red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 107, 108, 109. Apartment Houses. Built during 1959 and 1960, each apartment house was a three-story prefabricated block structure with line-coated walls and a red tile roof. These apartment houses were occupied by families of clerical workers.
- to 1959. Foating was allowed on Sundays and holidays at a fee of 10 chon per-20 minutes.
- 112. Unidentified College and Middle School Building. Built after the Korean armistice; a three-story prefebricated structure with cement-coated walls and a red tile roof. This school was divided into two sections; one half was used as a college and the other as a middle school.
- 113. National Notel No. 1 (Kyongam Notel). Built after the Korean armistice; located at the foot of Kyongam Mountain; three sides were fenced. There were two single-story old Korean style wooden structures with line-coated walls and cement tile roofs. This hotel had both hot floors and Western style rooms with beds, and could accommodate about 200 guests. Tourist groups and high-ranking government officials stayed at this hotel, which was managed by the Dusiness Department of the Sariwon People's Committee.
- 114. Cascade. An artificial scenic cascade built in 1959. The water was pumped in two iron pipes from the boating pool to the upper water storage on Kyöngan Mountain in order to form this cascade.
- 115. Sariwon Historical Museum. This museum was built after the Korean armistice; a single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof. The museum was managed by the Education and Cultural Propaganda Department of the Hwanghae-pukto People's Committee and the Hwanghae-pukto KIP Committee. Historic relics, industrial products, and other articles of historic value seized during the Korean War and during guerrilla fights against the Japanese were embilited.
- 116. National Notel No. 2. Built after the Korean armistice; a four-story prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a flat roof. The hotel was the largest and best-equipped in Sariwon. Repatriates from Japan were first accommodated in this hotel before being moved to other suitable places.

- Irrigation Construction Enterprise Station. Euclit after the Korcan 117. armistice, a single-story red brick structure with a slate roof, enclosed by a board fence. It was a branch office of the Oji-dong Irrigation Construction Enterprising Station and handled local irrigation construction works.
- 118. Korea-Soviet Hall. Built after the Korean armistice; an L-shaped, twostory brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. The first floor was equipped with about 700 seats; the second floor was used as office and exhibition space. Coremontal meetings, lectures and other gatherings were held here. When such meetings were over, a movie was usually shown free of charge. Participation in these meetings was by invitation cards delivered through workshops. The hall was managed by the Propaganda and Agitation Department of the Kwanghae-pukto KLP Committee; its operation was supervised by the Central Committee of the Korea-Scviet Association.
- 119. Canal Water Control Floodgate Frame. Constructed in 1959, this frame was constructed with reinforced cement. There were two floodgates at the bottom of the block; the waterways were constructed with reinforced cement. Boating and swiming races were held here.
- 120. Greenhouse. This single-story class greenhouse belonged to the planting. station.
- 121, 122, 123, 124, 125. Apartment Houses. Euilt after the Korean armistice, each apartment house was a single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. Most of these apartment houses were occupied by repatriates from Japan, others by families of laborers and clerical workers.
- Sariwon People's Hospital. Euilt efter the Korean armistice, a singlestory structure with cement-coated walls and a tile roof.
- Hwanghae-pulto Power Distribution Department. Built after the Korean armistice; an L-shaped, two-story structure with cement-coated walls and a slate roof.
- Warehouse, Ewinghae-nukto Power Distribution Department. Built after the 128. Korcan armistice; a single-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 129, 130. Apartment Houses. Duilt in 1957, each apartment house was a threestory prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- Apartment House. Built in about 1957; an L-shaped, four-story prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof. Most of the apartments were occupied by employees of the Ewanghae-public People's Committee.
- Sarivon Machine Professional School. Built after the Korean armistice, the Torner Seriver Senior Middle School, renamed in 1958. It was a three-story brick offucture with coment-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 133. <u>Foiler room, Sariwon Machine Professional School</u>. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story brick structure.
- 134, 135, 136. Apartment Houses. Built in 1955; each epartment house was a four-story structure. They were occupied by repatriates from Japan and families of laborers and clerical workers.
- 137, 138, 139, 140, 141, 142. Apartment Houses. Duilt in 1955, each apartment house was a three-story structure. These apartments were occupied by repair ates from Japan and families of laborers and clerical workers.

AND WAS

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

-11-

- 143. Sariwon Numicipal Store. Built after the Korean armistice, this was locally called the store of the Korean Nationals Residing in Japan. It was a single-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a cement-coated flat roof.
- 144. See No. 137, above.
- 145. ihungaae-pukto Kilitary Mobilization Department. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 146. Hvenghae-puito KLP Committee. Built during 1959 and 1960; a four-story prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 147. Warchouse and Boiler Room, Hwanghae-pulto KIP Committee. Built during 1959 and 1960; a single-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 148. Sarivon Public Stadium. Constructed during 1956 and 1957, this stadium had a 400-meter oval track and a mud fence around it. Soccer, basketball and volleyball games were played here. This stadium was also used for mass meetings.
- 149. <u>Hwanghae-puirto Athletic Guidance Committee</u>. Built in 1957; a three-story prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a flat roof. It ., housed a champions' training camp and a council room.
- 150. Sarivon Normal College. Built after the Korean armistice, this school was formerly known as the Sarivon-Teachers College; it was renamed in 1960.

 The school building, two dormitories, a dining hall, a boiler room, and a layatory were enclosed by a wooden fence. This school offered a six to twelve-month teacher training course for prinary, junior, and senior middle school teachers in the province.
 - a. School building. A three-story brick structure with coment-coated walls and a slate roof.
 - b. Dormitory. A four-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a slate and red cement tile roof.
 - c. Dormitory. -A-three-story prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.
 - d. Dining hall. A single-story brick structure with lime-conted walls and a red cement tile roof.
 - e. Boiler room.
 - f. Levetory.
- 151. Apartment House. Built in 1959; a four-story prefabricated block structure with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.
- 152. Evanghae-puirto Ilbo (Daily Press) Building. Built during 1958 and 1959; an L-chaped, three-story block and brick structure with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile reof. The monthly subscription price of the paper was 60 chon.
- 153, 154. Apartment Houses. Built in 1957; a four-story prefaoricated block structure with line-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.
- 155. Internal Affairs Sub-Station Plaza: Built after the Korean armistice; a wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.
- 156. Sarivon Dry Nursery. Built after the Korean ermistice; a single-story brick structure with a flat roof.

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

27 8 1 3 3 3

- 157. Serivon Reilroad Dornitory. Duilt after the Korean armistice; a two-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. The bachelor employees of the Sariwon Railroad Station occupied this dermitory.
- 158. Apartment House. Built ofter the Korean armistice; a three-story brick structure with lime-coated wells and a tile roof, occupied by femilies of leborers and clorical workers.
- 159. Sariwon Railroad Station Vernicelli Restaurant. Built after the Korean armistice; a two-story trick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. It had a secting capacity of about 100 persons.
- 160. See No. 153, above.
- 161. Mattional Notel No. 3. Demaged during the Korean War and repaired after the Korean ampistice; a two-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a flat roof. It accommodated about 100 persons.
- 162, 163. Apartment Houses. Duilt in 1955, each apartment house was a threestory brick obsusture with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile roof. Families of laborers and clerical workers occupied these apartment houses.
- 164. Seriven Form Products Store. Built in 1955, an L-shaped, single-story brick structure with lime-coated wells and a slate roof. Foodstuffs and farm products, except grains, were sold at this store.
- 165. Sariuon Soft Drink Store. Duilt after the Korean armistice; a weeden structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof. The store was enclosed by a wooden fence. Soft drinks such as eider, ice-cakes and ice-creams were sold in the surmer season, and vermicalli in other seasons.
- 166, 167. Merchouse, Ecrivon Reilroad Station. Built in 1953; a single-story red brick structure with a tile reof.
- 163. Sariwon Railroad Station. Built in 1958.
 - a. Station building. A single-story block and brick structure with lime-coated wells; the central portion of the roof was tile, while both ends were flat concrete. An average of 1,000 travellers used this station every day, going to and from P'yongyang, Kaesong and Reeju.
 - b, c. Waiting rooms. Built after the Korean armistice; single-story wooden structures with lime-ecated wells and red tile roofs.
 - d, c. Exestories. Built after the Korean armistice; single-story brick objectueous.
- 169. Apartment House. Dullt in 1953; on L-shaped, four-story prefabricated cement-clock structure with coment-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 170. Apartment Rouge. Duilt in 1959; a three-story prefabricated cement-block structure with coment-casted walls and a red tile roof. Families of leberors and clarical workers occupied this apartment house.
- 171. Unidertified School Duilding. Duilt as the Ewanghae-putto Staff School in 1955, this building was first used as the provincial staff school but later as the Ewanghae-putto Agricultural Cooperative Staff School, which moved to a new building in 1960. The building which is now used is a three-story brich structure with line-coated wells and a slate roof.
- 172. Apartment Mauce. Built after the Korean War; a four-story prefabricated coment block structure with lime-coated walls and a coment tile roof.

50X1-HUM

-13-

- 173. Unidentified Warehouse. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 174. <u>Unidentified Marchouse</u>. Built after the Korean War, an L-shaped, single-story cement block structure with a clate roof.
- 175. Apartment House. Built in 1956; a five-story prefabricated cement block structure with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.
- 176. Apartment House. Built in 1956; an L-shaped, five-story prefabricated cement block structure with a red cement tile roof. The first floor was used as a store and the second floor as living quarters.
- 177. Public Lovetory. Built in 1956; an L-shaped brick structure with a tile roof.
- 176. Unidentified Day Nursery. Built after the Korean armistice, a singlestory cement block structure with cement-coated wells and a flat roof.
- 179. Apartment House. Built in 1957; an L-shaped, five-story prefabricated cement-block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 180. Apartment House. Built in 1957; a four-story prefabricated cement block structure with lime-coated walls and a red cement tile roof.
- 181. Bridge. Constructed with reinforced cement in 1958.
- 182. Unidentified People's Army Division Readquarters.
 - Division headquarters. Built in 1955; a four-story brick building with lime-coated walls and a flat roof.
 - b. Boiler room. Built in 1955; a single-story brick structure with a tile roof.
- 183. Hwanghae-puito Internal Affairs Department.
 - 2. Office building. Built in 1959; a four-story cement block structure with cement-coated walls and a red tile roof.
 - b. Garage. Built in 1959; a single-story brick structure with a tile roof.
- 164. Orphen Institute. Built after the Morean armistice, this institute had a primary, junior and senior middle school, and college courses.
 - a. School building. A single-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a slate roof.
 - b. Leboratory and dormitory. A four-story prefabricated cement block structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.

The orphaned children of revolutionaries and patriots hilled during Japanese rule and the Korean War, and a few children of North Korean Army personnel were admitted to this institute.

- 185. Unidentified School Building. Built after the Korean War; an L-chaped two-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- 186. Sarivon Tree Planting Station. Duilt after the Korean armistice, this station comprised two single-story wooden structures with lime-coated walls and slate roofs. It was responsible for all tree planting in Sariwon.

. . .

-14-

- 187, 188, 189, 190 Apartment Houses. Built during 1957 to 1959, each apartment house was a four-story profabricated cement block structure with line-coated walls and a rod tile roof. They were occupied by the families of laborers and cherical workers in Sariwon.
- 191. Sarlwon Normali Professional School. Built after the Korean war; a three-story brick structure with cement-coated walls and a tile roof.
- 192. Dornitory, Serivon Normal Professional School. Built after the Korean armistice; a four-story cement block structure with cement-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 193. See No. 187, above.

....

. ä.

- 194. Unidentified Workshop. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-stopy wooden structure with line-coated wells and a slate roof. It was surrounded by a barbed wire fence.
- 195. Novie Theater under Construction. A single-story structure; construction was started in 1959.
- 196. Approximent House. Built during 1957 and 1958; a three-story prefabricated cement block structure with line-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 197. Sariwon Block Factory. Built after the Korean armistice, this factory had two single-story brick buildings with red tile roofs; it supplied almost all the blocks needed for construction in Sariwon. The Construction Trust in Sariwon also produced a few blocks.
- 196. East Serivon Market. Built after the Korean armistice, this market comprised national stores, production cooperative stores, factory direct sales stores, and agricultural cooperative direct sales stores. All were of wooden structure.
 - a. An I-shaped, single-story structure with lime-coated mad walls and a slate roof.
 - b. Restaurant. A single-story wooden structure with mud walls and a tile roof. This restaurant sold vermicelli, rice with dog meat soup, and wine.
 - c, d, e, f, g, h. These were single-story mud block structures. Consumer goods, cognetics, stationery, fabrics, farm products (except grains), and fruit were sold.
- 199. Sarivon Combined Factory. Built after the Korean armistice, these 16 Yactories were under the control of the Local Industry Management Bureau of the Evanghae-puirto People's Committee. They distributed their products to national stores in the cities and counties of the province. (The national stores also purchased good quality products from P'yongyang through the provincial direct sales store.) The following factories were in the compound, surrounded by a brick fence:
 - a, b. Underwear factories. Each building was a single-story wooden structure with line-coated wells and a slate roof. They produced underwear, knitted goods, and shirts.
 - Socks and ploves factory. A single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
 - d. Toy factory. A single-story wooden structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
 - e, f. Silk fabric factories. Single-story brick structures with lime-coated walls and slate roofs.
 - g. Leather goods factory. A single-story wooden structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

3,0

-15-

- ii. Small farm implements and machine parts factories. These both were single-story brick structures, with slate roofs.
- Small scrap iron smelting furnace. Installed after the Korean armistice; this was a single-story brick structure.
- k. Combined factory office. A single-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
- Construction material factory. A single-story wooden structure with limecoated walls and a slate roof. The factory produced construction materials and furniture, including wardrobes, sideboards, tables, chairs and mirrors.
- m, n, o. Clothing and quilt factories. Each factory was a single-story wooden structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof which produced adults' suits, Korean-style clothing for women, children's clothes and quilts.
- p. Council room of the Sarivon Combined Factory. A single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls.
- q. Day mursery. A single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- r. Guard room. A single-story brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. The guards checked visitors and vehicles entering and leaving the factory.
- 200. Sarivon Tractor Repair Factory. Built during 1957 to 1959, this factory repaired tractors and produced tractor parts; it employed approximately 400 persons. The factory was equipped with facilities for producing tractors; however, it was not known if tractors were in production in 1960. The manufacturing equipment was made by the employees themselves, during the machine tools multiplying movement of 1958 to 1960. There were six workshops in the factory compound, which was enclosed by a brick fence:
 - a, b. Lathe workshops. Each workshop was a single-story brick structure with cement-costed walls.
 - c. Repair workshop. A single-story brick structure.
 - d. Marchouse. A single-story brick structure.
 - c. Guard room. A single-story brick structure. The guards checked pedestrians and vehicles entering the front gate of the factory."
 - f. Office. A single-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a tile roof.
- 201. Sariwon Soy Sauce Factory. Built during 1957 and 1958, this was a three-story brick structure with a brick fence.
- 202. Unidentified Middle School Building. Built after the Korean armistice, this building was initially used as the Hwanghae-pulto Staff School. Trees were planted in place of a fence. There were four buildings:
 - a. School building. This was a two-story red brick structure with a slate roof.
 - D. Dining hall. This was a single-story wooden structure with cement-coated walls and a red tile roof.
 - c. Lavatory.
 - d. Dormitory. A single-story structure with lime-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 203. Hwanghac-pulto Purchasing Station. Built after the Korean armistice; a singlestory brick structure with a slate roof.

-16-

- 204. Two Unidentified Buildings. Built after the Korean armictice, these were formerly used by the Muanghae-pulto Internal Affairs Station; each building was a single-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 205. Tiree Unidentified Buildings. These were enclosed by a fence.
- 206. Refrigerator Warehouse. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story structure with line-coated walls and a flat roof.
- 207, 203, 209. Four Warehouses. Built after the Korean armistice; each warehouse was a single-story red brick structure with a red tile roof.
- 210. Farm Machine Store of the Combined Factory Direct Sales Store. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 211. Hwanghae-mukto Provincial Court. Built after the Korean armistice; a singlestory structure with line-coated walls and a red tile roof.
- 212. Unidentified Workshop. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story extructure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 213. Rectaurant. Dillt after the Korean armistice; a single-story structure with line-coated valls and a slate roof.
- 214. Irrigation Construction Machine Repair Factory. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story red brick structure with a slate roof. This factory repaired motors, pumps, and other machine tools used in irrigation work under the supervision of the Irrigation Construction Bureau of the Huanghae-pulto People's Committee.
- 215. Tirrigation Construction Machine Repair Factory Office. Built after the Koroan armistice; a single-story wooden structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 216. Agricultural Escilities Designing Research Station. Built after the Korean armistice; a two-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a red tile roof. This station, employing about 100 workers, studied and made specifications for irrigation construction works under the guidance of the Central Agricultural Facilities Designing Research Station and the Irrigation Construction Management Station of the Hwanghae-puirto People's Committee.
- 217. Dornitory, Agricultural Facilities Designing Research Station. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story brick structure with line-coated walls and a tile roof; it was enclosed by a wooden fence. This dornitory accommodated unmovered employees of the Agricultural Facilities Designing Research Station.
- 213. Store. Built after the Korean emistice; a single-story structure with line-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 219. Sanguae Princey and Middle School. Built after the Korean armistice; a three-story brick officture with a slate roof. Trees were planted in place of a fence around the school building.
- 220. Unidentified College Buildings. Built after the Korean amistice; three singlestory wooden buildings with line-coated walls.

. .

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L

C-O-N-F-I-D-E-N-T-I-A-L	

-17-

- 221. Unidentified Marchouse. Built after the Korean armistice; a single-story red brick structure with a tile roof. A rail track was installed from the Sariwon Railroad Station to this warehouse and all cargo was transported by freight cars.
- 222. Sangme Internal Affairs Station. Built after the Korean armistice, a singlestory brick structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof.
- 223. Sariwon Orphanage. Built after the Korean armistice, the orphanage was enclosed by a stone fence.
- 224. Unidentified People's Army Barracks. These three barracks were built after the Korean armistice. Each barrack was a single-story structure with lime-coated walls and a slate roof. The barracks were enclosed by wire entanglements.

50X1-HUM

50X1-HUM

50X1-HUM

1. Comment. The Ministry of Food Procurement and Administration was incorporated into the Ministry of Commerce on 31 August 1959.

	_	
Distribution	of	Attachment:

·

ORR - Retain

PIC-Retain

